CITY OF RICHARDSON
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES - MARCH 17, 2015

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on March 17, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in
the Council Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Barry Hand, Chairman

Gerald Bright, Vice Chair

Janet DePuy, Commissioner
Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner
Thomas Maxwell, Commissioner
Randy Roland, Commissioner
Bill Ferrell, Alternate

Stephen Springs, Alternate

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Assistant Director — Dev. Svcs — Planning

Dan Tracy, Development Engineer
Israel Roberts, Development Manager
Chris Shacklett, Senior Planner

Kathy Welp, Executive Secretary

BRIEFING SESSION

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff
regarding staff reports and agenda items. No action was taken.

MINUTES

1.

Approval of the minutes of the regular business meeting of March 3, 2015.

Commissioner Maxwell asked to have the word “not” removed from the sixth page, third
paragraph.

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to approve the minutes as corrected;
second by Commissioner DePuy. Motion passed 7-0.

CONSENT ITEMS

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan
Commission and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no
separate discussion of these items unless desired, in which case any item(s) may be removed from
the Consent Agenda for separate consideration.

Final Plat, Site Plan, Landscape Plan, and Elevations — Northside at UTD: A request
for approval of final plat, site, landscape and building elevation plans for the development
of a multi-family project with two (2) four-story buildings and two (2) two-story buildings
totaling 313 units. The 13.24-acre site is located at 3000 Northside Boulevard, on the
north side of Synergy Park Boulevard, east of Waterview Parkway.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-03-17 Minutes.doc



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

March 17, 2015

3. Site and Landscape Plans — Eminent Surgery Center (companion to Item 4): A
request for approval of site and landscape plans for the development of a 25,998-square
foot surgery center. The 4.02-acre site is located at 1351 W. President George Bush
Highway, on the south side of President George Bush Highway, west of Waterview
Parkway.

Motion: Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as
presented; second by Commissioner Frederick. Motion approved 7-0.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

4. Replat - Synergy Park Addition, Lots 4C and 6A, Block A (companion to Item 3):
Consider and take necessary action for a request for approval of a replat of Lots 4B and 6,
Block A of the Synergy Park Addition to dedicate easements for the development of a
medical facility. The 4.02-acre site is located at 1351 W. President George Bush
Highway, on the south side of President George Bush Highway, west of Waterview
Parkway.

Mr. Roberts stated the replat dedicated the necessary easements for the development of a
26,000 square foot medical facility, and the replat complied with the City’s subdivision
regulations.

With no questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing.

No comments were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Hand closed the public
hearing.

Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to approve Iltem 4 as presented; second by
Commissioner Roland. Motion approved 7-0.

5. Replat — Galatyn Park North Addition, Lots 1B, 3, 4 and 5, Block C and Open Space
Lots 3, 4 and 5, Block X: Consider and take necessary action on a request for approval
of a replat of Lot 1A, Block C of Galatyn Park North to create seven (7) lots. The 52.60-
acre site is located at the southeast corner of President George Bush Highway and Plano
Road.

Chairman Hand advised the applicant submitted a letter requesting a continuance to the
April 7, 2015 City Plan Commission meeting and, although the staff would not be making
a presentation, the public hearing would be opened to allow comments from anyone who
could not be at the April 7" meeting.

No comments in favor or opposed were received.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-03-17 Minutes.doc



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

March 17, 2015

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to continue the public hearing on ltem 5
to the April 7, 2015 City Plan Commission meeting; second by Commissioner
DePuy. Motion approved 7-0.

6. Zoning File 15-04 — The Shire Phase Il: Consider and take necessary action on a
request to amend the Shire Phase Il PD Planned Development under Ordinance 3882 to
allow apartments (maximum 56 units) as an additional use, and to modify the
development standards. The 9.71-acre PD District is located on the north side of Infocom
Drive, between Wyndham Lane and Shire Boulevard.

Mr. Shacklett stated the applicant was requesting to amend the existing 9.7-acre PD
Planned Development (PD) to accommodate an additional use of apartments within the
two-story building. He also reviewed the individual apartment units and the history of the
development noting that in 2012 the owner amended the approved concept plan to change
the proposed development from a three-story condominium complex to a two story
independent living facility.

Mr. Shacklett pointed out the only changes the applicant was currently requesting was the
addition of the word “apartment” as an allowed use, adding a specific parking ratio to the
PD, setting a minimum requirement for the amenities provided, and a condition to waive
the screening requirement between residential and non-residential uses.

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by noting there would be no changes to the
concept plan and suggested if the Commission made a motion to recommend approval, the
motion should state that the proposed Exhibit “B” should replace the existing Exhibit “B”.

Commissioner Maxwell asked if the amenities listed in A-950 district could easily be
included in the project for additional points.

Mr. Shacklett replied that additional points could be added for table games (i.e., foosball,
pool table, etc.), which could probably be the only items from A-950 that would be added,
but it would depend on the space available in the common areas inside the building.

Commissioner Roland asked if the statement from the briefing session that the current
project had more amenity points than the typical 250-unit apartment complex was correct.

Mr. Shacklett replied that was correct and explained that per the A-950 District
regulations, the first 250-units require 70 amenity points, which equates to 0.28 points per
unit as opposed to the 0.54 points per unit of the current complex.

Chairman Hand asked what the threshold was for a standard apartment complex and how

many amenity points does the current complex have. He also wanted to know about the
request for a reduction in parking.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-03-17 Minutes.doc



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

March 17, 2015

Mr. Shacklett said a typical apartment complex developed under the standard A-950
regulations would require 70 amenity points; however, the PD for the current project does
not have an amenity point calculation but does require club house/gathering areas
(lobby/mezzanine), a fenced dog park, and a swimming pool, all of which the complex has
and would equate to 30 points if calculated under the A-950 regulations.

Regarding the reduction in parking, Mr. Shacklett said there were no parking ratios
designated in the PD, but in a typical A-950 district, two (2) parking spaces are required
per unit and the current project provides 1.5 parking spaces per unit.

Commissioner Frederick asked if there are any 56 unit apartment complexes in the city.

Mr. Shacklett replied that most of the smaller complexes in the City dated back to the
1960’s.

Commissioner Frederick stated that it seemed odd the Commission was trying to compare
this smaller complex with the amenity point situation of a larger project.

Commissioner Springs asked if the existing facility had any bike racks.
Mr. Shacklett stated he did not see any bike racks at the project site.
With no other questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing.

Mr. Dale Wamstad, 14307 Hughes Lane, Dallas, Texas, said he would appreciate the
Commission approving the request.

Commissioner DePuy asked if many of the prospective tenants were under the 55 year old
required age limit. She also wanted to know the square footage of the units.

Mr. Wamstad replied a substantial amount of the prospective tenants were under the age
limit and those over the age limit did not like the idea of a facility that had any association
with assisted or independent living.

Regarding the size of the units, Mr. Wamstad said the one-bedrooms were 840 square
feet; the two bedrooms — 1,050 square feet; and they had eight units that were 1,110
square feet.

Chairman Hand pointed out that in previous submittals the applicant had requested
condominiums, then changed that request to independent living and now, based on market
research, was requesting a change to apartment units without an age restriction.

Mr. Wamstad stated he hired a consultant and based on the information from the

consultant, the age restricted units were not in as high a demand as units without age
restrictions.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-03-17 Minutes.doc



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

March 17, 2015

Commissioner Ferrell asked what types of leases were available, and did the current
tenants have any concerns with changing the age limit on the apartments.

Mr. Wamstad said that most of the current renters have yearly leases, but stated there is a
market for furnished apartments on short-term leases.

Chairman Hand asked if all the units were furnished and was there any additional
information on the one remaining parcel that had been set aside for a hotel.

Mr. Wamstad indicated only three units were furnished and they were currently used for
showing prospective tenants, but could be leased with the furniture.

In regard to the one remaining lot, Mr. Wamstad said plans for a Sheraton Hotel would be
submitted to the City in the near future.

Mr. Bryan O’Boyle, 6423 Del Norte, Dallas, Texas, stated he was a consultant in the
multi-family residential industry and complimented the applicant on the quality of his
development and confirmed the applicant’s statement that the market demand for age
restricted units was not as great as units without an age restriction.

Chairman Hand asked if the age limit was the problem with getting occupants for the
apartments.

Mr. O’Boyle said that was correct and noted that most of the people coming into the area
with the new State Farm and Raytheon projects would not qualify age wise for the
apartments. He also concurred with the statement from Ms. Frederick that comparing the
current project with larger projects in regard to amenity points did not make sense.

No other comments in favor or opposed were received and Chairman Hand closed the
public hearing.

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File

15-04 as presented including replacing the existing Exhibit “B” with the
proposed Exhibit “B”; second by Commissioner DePuy.
Chairman Hand stated the zoning file was an interesting case, but cautioned that
it should not set a precedent for developers wanting to build assisted or
independent living facilities then request a zoning change to small apartment
complexes.

Commissioner Springs concurred with Mr. Hand’s comments.

Commissioner Frederick complimented the applicant on the quality of the
development and suggested it was a standard all developers should aspire to.

Motion approved 7-0.

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-03-17 Minutes.doc



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
March 17, 2015

ADJOURN

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Hand adjourned the regular
business meeting at 7:39 p.m.

Barry Hand, Chairman
City Plan Commission

Ds:CPC/2015/2015-03-17 Minutes.doc



